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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanyingconsolidated financial statements of FirstMeridian Business Services
Private Limited("the Parent”) and its subsidiaries, (the Parentand its subsidiaries together referred
to as "the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows/ and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Actread with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS")and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2020, and their
consolidatedloss,their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash flows and their
consolidatedchanges in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the ConsolidatedFinancial
Statements section of our report We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by usis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

« The Parent'sBoard of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director'sreport, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

« Qur opinion on the consolidateo financial statements does not cover the other inforration and we do
notexpress any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other informationand consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
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consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

= If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 3 material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consclidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equityof the Groupin accordance with the Ind
ASand other accounting principles generally accepted in India.The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irreqgularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group areresponsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective
entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilityfor the Audit of the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidatedfinancial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, thev could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidatedfinancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidatedfinancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the period ended March 31, 2019 being the firt
year of incorporation, included in these consolidated financial statements, have been prepared after
adjusting previously issued the standalone financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS. Adjustments made to the
previously issued standalone financial statements to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements is not modified in respect of the above matters on the
comparative financial information.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit,we reportthat:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our auditof the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books of accounts.

¢) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
\/ Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
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Statement of Changes in Equitydealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevantbooks of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consclidated
financial statements

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parentas on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of, subsidiary companiesincorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) Reporting on the adequacy of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, under section 143(3)(i) of the Act is not
applicable in view of the exemption available to the Parent in terms of the notification no. G.S.R.
583(E) dated June 13,2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India,
read with general circular No. 08/2017 dated July 25,2017.

g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Parent being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the managerial
remuneration not applicable,

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014,as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group

ii) Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

H

Mukesh Jain

Partner

Membership No. 108262
UDIN:20108262AAAAUD2713

Place: Mumbai
Date:September 25, 2020



FirstMeridian Business Services Privata Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet at March 31, 2020
All amounts are % in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

9 MNote As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars Nao,
Assets
1 |Non-current assets
a, Broperty. plant and 2quipmeant 3 843,73
| B. Right-of-use asset 2858 1,410.24
| . Capital work=m-progress -
:I:I. Goodwill
&, Other intangible assats 4 15,178.92
| f. Financial assets
i, Dthars financial assats s 4,979.98 3.163.52
|g. Deferrad tax asset [} 373.30 559.58
| h: Mon-current tax assets {net) 8,809.60 6,154.33
Total non-current assets 29,233.05 31,457.70
2 Current assets
a. Financial Assets
1. Trade receivables 7 15,435.27 10,550.89
i. Loans 8 | 211 -
i, Cash and cash equivalanis 3 7,788.77 8,837.25
v, Bank balanca ather than (i) atove 10 4,715.35 4,455,230
w.  Other financial assats 5 4,859.04 6,789.58
. Current tax assats (nar) 1,420,52 -
c. Other current assets 11 | 766.15 810.34
Total current assets { 34,991.21 31,554.00
Total assets ! 64,224.26 63,011.70
Equity and liabilities |
Equity
a. Equity share capital 12 7,321.91 7:221.91
b. Qther aquity 13 18,831.82 20,803.80
Total Equity 26,053.73 28,025.71
|Liabilities
1 Non-Current liabilities
a. Financial liaoilities
i. Borrewings 14 4348 7877
. Leass liabiity 28.8 B91.63 207.56
iit. Other financial liabilitiss 1,585:12 4.310.50
b. Prowisions for gratuity 3,130,588 2,087.54
¢, Deferrad ax liability (net) & 1,386.84 2,562,27
Total current liabilities 7,087.75 9,947.14
2 ICurrent liabilities
IB. Financial liabilitles
| Borrowings 14 2;183.62 -
It Trade payabies
- Total outstanding duas of micro and small enterprises 15 .18 19.35
- Others 1,435.30 790,83
ill, Lease liability 285 515.33 705.55
. Other financial iabilities 16 17,436.32 15,614.43
. Prowisions for compansated absance 2,250.25 1,255.10
Othar current habilities 17 7.145.57 6,653.86
Total current liahilities 31,072.78 25,038.85
' Total liabilities 38,170.53 34,985.99
|
| Total Equity and Liabilities 64,224.26 63,011.70
The-accompanying notes ars integral part of Finanoial statements 1-37

In terms of our report attached of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants g on bahalfof the Board of Directors of

—ﬂ—’* iness Services Private Limit

Mukesh Jain - .
Partnar Sud Nilay Pra
Date ' September 25th, 2020 Director Director

Flace: Mumbai DIN - 000629556 f:/ DIN - 07652750
; A
Satish Srinivasan ManaliFramod Joshi
Chief Financial Officar Company Secratary

Date © September 25th, 2020
Place: Mumbal



FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

All amounts are 2 in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Note | For the year ended Period from
Particulars No. March 31, 2020 February 20, 2018 to
March 31, 2019
I |Revenue from operations 18 2,07,361.56 1,41,280.91
I |Other Income 19 1,696.40 600.26 |
111 |Total Income (I + II) 2,09,057.96 1,41,881.17
IV |Expenses
Cost of material consumed 129.53 101.31
Payment to contractors 230.42 124,53
Employee benefits expense 20 1,98,542.03 1,35,033.22
Finance costs 21 185.90 126.91
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 7.595.59 5,188.31
Other expenses 23 3,803.36 5,155.95
| Total expenses (IV) 2,10,886.83 1,45,730.69
V |Loss before tax (III - IV) (1,828.87) (3,849.52)
V1 |Tax expenses 24
Current tax 198.52 312.159
Deferred tax (715.24) [361.95)
Tax relating to earlier years (10.32) -
(526.74) (49.76)
V1I | Loss for the year (V - VI) (1,302.13) (3,799.76)
VIII Other comprehensive income
1tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (968.22) (93.40)
-Income tax effect on above 243.51 53.35
IX |Total comprehensive income for the year (VII 4+ VIII) (2,026.84) (3,839.81)
Attributable to :
Basic and diluted Earnings per share [in ¥) 25 (1.80) (5.26)
The accompanying notes are integral part of Financial statements 1-37

In tarms of our report attached of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

i

Mukesh Jain

Partner

Date : September 25th, 2020
Place: Mumbai

r Balakrishnan

N

Satish Srinivasan
Chief Financial Officer

Director

Date ; September 25th, 2020
Flace: Mumbai

half of the Board of Directors of
eridian Business Services Private Limited

l\}k

Nilay Prathhk
Director

W
Mn‘:%r:; Joshi

Company Secretary



FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited
Statement of Cashflows for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are ? in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss for the year

Adjustments far:

Depraciation

Gam on account af early rermination of |=ases

[ntarest [ncome an secunty deposits

Interest gn Income Tax Refund

Intarast income on fixed deposits with tanks

[Prafit)/less on sale of property, plant and aquipments (net)
Interest an loans from banks and finangal (nstitutions
Imterest an lease liabiliny

Lisbihties wiritten Back

Dividend on investments in mutual funds

Provisian for doubtful trade & other receivables

ESOP

Met ganiflgss) ansing on financial assets designated as at FYTRL
Gain an Fair Valuation of Put Liability

Mowamant of NCI - Put Liability

Movements in working capital:

Incrase/ (Decrease) in working capital

Trade and other receivables

Current and non current other financials assets
Oiher current sssets

Trade and other payables

Pravisions

Othar current liabilities

Current and non current cther financials iabilitiss
Cash generated from operations

incema taxes paid
Met cash generated frem operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipments induding capital advances
Furchase of imtangibles

Furchase consideration pad net of cash acquirad

Sale of property, glant and eguipments

Dividend on imvestments

Bazlance in Fiked Deposit

Interast ingomea on fixed dapgsits with banks

Met cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Fraceeds/{rapaymant) from domowing

Progeeds from share [ssuad dunng the year
Payment of lease liability

Intarast paid

Met cash generated from financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

For the year ended March 31,
2020

Period from February 20,
2018 to March 31, 2019

(1,828.87)
7,598.59

(20.85)|
(155.99) |
(497 46) |
{15.57)|
45,36 |
140,54 |
(83.39)

1878.78)
(2,725.78)

(3,849.52)

5,

1,665.36

1,637.14

1,344.40
15,307.71)
(536.53)
373.08
2,030.66
1,807,681
2.835.68

[1,443.15)

4,784.13

13,102.83)

(2,383.12)

1,681.30

31.39

0.83
(254.98) (4,455.48)
743.93 718,12
58.14 (22,454.28)

[

2,144,098 11.27)
= 30.361.72
(537.40)
£ [12.78)
1,176.44 29,710.27
(1,148.54) 8,937.29

8.837.29
7,788,75 | 8,937.29

Tha accampanying notas ara .m:egral part of Financal s1atemeants

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

B

Mukesh Jain L
Partner

Date . September 25:
Place: Mumbar
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Sud

Director KJ’
¥

Satish Srinivasan
Chief Financial Cficer

Date © September 25th, 2020
Place Mumbai

Nilay Pratik

Director
e

MonaliPramod loshi
Company Secretary




FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
All amounts are ¥ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated

a.

b.

Equity share capital

Particulars | No. of shar Amount
Balance at April 01, 2018 ; -
Changes in equity share capital during the year 7,22,19,134 7.221.91
Balance at March 31, 2019 7,22,19,134 7,221.91 |
Changes in 2quity share capital during the year = = ,
Balance at March 31, 2020 7,22,19,134 7,221.91 |
Other equity
Reserves & surplus Total
. Securities Retained ESOP
Particulars i :
premium earnings Reserve
reserve
Balance at April 01, 2018
Share issued during the pariod 24,767.73 - - 24,768
Remeasurement of defined benefits plan (40.05) = (40.05)|
Less: Share Issue Expenses (124.12) - ; (124.12)]
Loss far tha year (3,799.76) = (3,799.76)
Balance at March 31, 2019 24,643.61 (3,839.81) 20,803.80
Share issued duning the period - = - -
Share based payments - - 54.86 54.86
Remeasurement of defined benefits plan “ (724.71) = (724.71)
Lass for the year - (1,302.13) * (1,302.13)
Balance at March 31, 2020 24,643.61 (5,866.65) 54.86 18,831.82

In terms of our repart attached of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

_;L,;u_’_
Mukesh Jain =~ |’
Partner

Date : September 25th, 2020
Place: Mumbai

Director
LIN - 00062356

3
Satish Srinivasan

Chief Financial Officer

Nilay Prati
Director
DIN - 07692750

W
Monali Pramaod Joshi
Company Secrstary

Date : Seotember 25th, 2020

Flace: Mumbai



FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

b)

{

=

Corporate information

FirstMerdian Business Services Private Limited (the "Company” ar "EMB"), together with its subsidiaries, collective referrad to
as the "Group”, was Incorporated in Februvary 20, 2018, as a private limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 (the
"Act”) for providing Management Advisory services and Staffing services, The Company is a subsidiary of ManPower Selutions
Limited with effect from February 20, 2018, The registered office of the Company is located at 3rd floor, Unit No.5, Ferns lcon,
Qutar Ring Road, Marathalli, Bangalore Urban, Karnataka, S560037. The name of the ultimate holding company is Manpower
Solutions Limited, Mauritus.

Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and measurement

Statement of compliance

The consolidated Balance Shest of the Group as at March 31, 2020 and the consolodated Statement of Prafit and Loss {including
Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash flows
for the year ended March 31, 2020, summary of significant actounting policies and other financial informaticn (together referred
as ‘Cansolidated Ind AS Financial Statements’) has been prepared under Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Comparies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended,.

Compliance with Ind AS:
The consolidated Ind AS financial Information were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 25 September
2020.

These financial statements comoly in all material aspects with [ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2012 (the Act) (Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015) as amended and ather relevant
provisions of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended March 31, 2019 were prepared In accardance with the accounting standards notified
under Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act ("Indian GAAP” or “"Pravious
GAAP"),

Financial statements for the year endad March 31, 2020 are the first set of Ind AS financial statements issued by the Group,
hence are covered by Ind AS 101, ‘First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards'. The transition to Ind AS has been
carried out from the accounting principles generally accepted in India ('Indian GAAP'), which is considerad as the Previous GAAP,
for the purposes of Ind AS 101, In preparing these financial statements, the Group's opening balance sheet was prepared as at
April 01, 2018, the Group’s date of transition to Ind AS.

Principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent. Cantrol exists when the parent has pawer over the entity, is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over
the entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability ta direct releyant activities, those which

significantly affect the entity's returns. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control commences until the date on which the control ceases.

Subsidiaries are consolidated by cambining like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expensas and cash flows of the parent
with those of its subsidiaries. The intra-company balances and transactions ncluding unrealized gain / loss from such
transactions are aliminated upon consolidation,

The Consolidated financial statements are prepared by adopting umform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the parent company’s separate
financial statements unless stated otherwise. Refer note 42 (a) for subsidiaries considered for consalidation.

Non-controlling interests (NCI):

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders of the parents of the
Company and to the non-controlling interest, even If this results in the non-contralling interests have a deficit balances,

Changes in the Company's equity interest in & subsidiary that do not result in a foss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions,

When the Parent loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related NCI
and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the control

Is lost. Any resulting gain or loss is recagnisad in profit or loss.
-
v g




2.2

b)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Principles of consolidation {Centinued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisibon methed. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities mcurred by the Graup to the former owners of the acquiree and the squity intarests 1ssued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquires. Acquisition-related costs are generally recogmised in consolidatad statement of profit ar
loss as incurred.

At the acguisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair valua, except that
deferred tax assats ar liabulities, and assets or habilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes' ("Ind AS 127) and Ind AS 13 'Employee Benefits' (“Ind AS 19") respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amaunt of any non-contralling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognizing a gan n respect thereof, the Group determinegs where there exists clear
ewvidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, Thereafter, the Group
reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the habilities assumed and recognises any
additional assets or liabilities that are identified in that reassessment, The Group then reviews the procedures used to measure
the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. [f the gain remains aftar this
reassessment and review, the Group recognizes it in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity as capital
reserve, If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain
purchase, the Group recognizes the gain, after reassessing and rewviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital
reserve.

When 2 business combination 1§ achieved in stagas, the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquirea is remeasured to
its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or less, if any, is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been rececgnised 0 other
comprehensive income are reclassified to consolidated statement of profit or loss whare such treatment would be appropriate If
that interast were disposad off.

Common control

Business combinations involving antities that are ultimately controlled by the same parties before and after the business
combination are considerad as Common cantrol entities. Comman control transactions are accounted using pooling of interest
methad. The financial statements in respect of prior periods have been restated from the period that the Transferor Company
became a subsidiary of the Transferee Company where the assets and liabilities of the transferee are recorded at their exishing
carrying values, the identity of reserves of the transferse company is preserved.

Current vs non-current classification:
All the assets and liabilities have been classified into currant and non current.

Assats:

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

3) It is expacted to be realised i, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Group's normal aperating cycle;

b} it is hald primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

) it is expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reparting date; or

d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is rastricted fram being exchangad or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting date.

Liabilities:

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

a) It is axpacted to be sattled in the Group's normal operating cycle;

b} it is held primarily for the purpose of baing traded,

) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

d) the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the 1ssue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

Cperating cycle:

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013, Based on the nature of services and the time taken between
acquisition of assets/inventories for praocessing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its
operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of the classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Group is Intian Rupees (INR).

The prasentation currency of the Group is Indian Rupeas (INR), All figures appearing in the consolidated financial statements are
rounded to th arast lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.




2.1 Basis of preparation and measurement (Continued)
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Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis and the historical cost convention except for
the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

s Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value,
* Equity settled share-based payments measured at fair value
» Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability - Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilitias, income and expenses, Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
prospectively in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

1. Deterrmination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles; (Note 2.2(a))
ii. Impairment test of non-financial assets (Note 2.2(c))

iil. Recognition of deferred tax assets; (Note 2.2(1))

iv. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; (Note 2.2(f))

v. Fair value of financial instruments (Note 2.2 (d))

vi. Impairment of financial assets (Note 2.2 (d))

vii. Measurement of defined benefit obligations; (Note 2.2(i))

viii. Fair valuation of employee share options; (Note 2.2(i))

Measurement of fair values

Group's accaunting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values (including Level 3 fair values).
The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows.

Level 1: guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, aither directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based an observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the
fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that
is significant to the entire measuremeant.

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the
change has accurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes

- Financial instruments
- Share-based payment arrangements
$r
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Significant Accounting Policies
Property plant and equipment
Recognition an easurement:

Items of property, plant and eguipment, other than freehold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Freehold land is carried at cost and is not depreciated. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

Any gain or loss an derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is
derecognized.

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate only if it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and that the cost of the item can be
reliably measured. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All
other repair and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting year in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, is provided under the straight-line method
in the manner prescribed under Schadule II of the Act, except in the following case where the life is different than as indicated in
Schedule II of the Act which is based on the technical evaluation of useful life carried out by the management:

Economic Useful Life

Particulars Property, plant and equipment Other Property, plant
provided under contracts & Equipment

Furniture and Fixtures 5 years 3 years

Equipments 3 years 5 years

Leasehold improvement are depreciated over the tenure of lease term.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Other Intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding eligible development costs are not capitalized and the related
expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives, and is recognized in profit or loss.

The estimated useful hives for current and comparative year are as follows:
Software - 10 years

Amortisation metkod, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if appropriate.
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2.2 Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's non-financial assets, other than defarred tax assets, are reviewsd at sach reporting date to determing whether thera
is any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset's recaverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an individual asset {or where applicable, that of cash generating urit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs) is the highar of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, Value in use is based on the astimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
af maoney and the risks specific to the asset (or CGU).

An impairment loss is recognised (F the carrying amount eof an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount,
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and |oss,

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for which impairment lass has
been recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there |s any indication that the |oss has
decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal 1s made only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does nat exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amartisation, if no imparment loss had been recegnised.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument 1s any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial assets other than those measurad subsequently at fair value through profit and loss, are recognized initially at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

sub + +
q 119 ement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categones:

= Amortized cost,

« Fair value through profit (FVTPL)

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT)

an the basis of its business moadal for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
asset.

Amortized cost :

A financial instrument s maasured at the amartized cost if bath the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPL)
on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) methed.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities which the Group has the power to cantrol if the (a) the Group has power aver the investes, (b} it
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to
affect Its returns.

Investment in subsidiary is shown at cost less impairment. When an indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of
the investmeant is assessed. Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than its estimated recoverable amaunt, it Is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount and the difference is charged to the statement of profit or loss. On disposal
of the investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is charged or credited to profit or
loss.

Fair value through profit and loss ('FVTPL'):

All financial assets that do nat meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value through profit or loss with all changes recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Interest (basis EIR method) Income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (s recagnised In the consolidated
statement of profit and loss within finance income/ finance costs separately from the other gains/ losses arising from changes in
the fair value.

r

Financial assets are measured at FVOCI if both the following conditions are met:

The asset is hald within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

- collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assats and

- contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount autstanding.

After imitial measurement, these assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends, Interest income under effective
interast methad, foreign excharge gains and losses and impairment |osses are recognized in the consolidated statement of Profit
. Other net gains and lossas are racognized in other comprehensive Income,
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of 3 Group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e. removed fram the Group's balance sheet) when;

The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

- (a) the Group nas transferrad substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (othar than debt instruments measured at FVOCI) and equity
instruments (measurad at FVTPL) are recognizad in the consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses in respect of
debt instruments measured at FYOCI and that are accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") model for measuremant and recognition of
impairment loss on the financial assets measurad at amortized cost and debt instruments measured at FVOCL

Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL at
each reporting date. In respect of other financial assets, the loss allowance is measurad at 12 month ECL only If there is no
significant deterioration in the credit risk since initial recognition of the asset or asset is determined to have a low credit risk at
the reporting date.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of the instrument.
Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or Issue.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial liabilities.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

A financial liability is classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) if it is dlassified as held-for trading or is designated
as such on Initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest
expense, are recognised in consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost:

Afrar initial recognition, financial Labilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are subseguently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method,

Amortizad cost is calculatad by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The amortization done using the EIR method is included as finance costs in the consclidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Derecognition

A financial liability |s derecaognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or exgires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification |$ treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consoclidated statement of
profit ar loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet (f there is 3 currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilitles simultanecusly.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet and cash flow statement includes cash at bank, cash, chegue, draft ocn hand and
damand deppsitswith an original maturity of less than thrae months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past avent and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation, in respect af which a
reliable estimate cap be mate. These are reviewad at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the currant manageament
estimates,

If the effact of the tima value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
spacific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recagnizad as finance cost,

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence s confirmed
by the accurrence or non-occurrence of one or mora uncertain futurs 2vents not wholly within the control of the Group.

A cantingent asset 15 a possible asset that arises from past avents and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or nen-accurrence of one ar mare uncertain future events nat whally within the contrel of the entity, Contingent assets are not
recognized till the realization of the income is virtually certain. However the same are disclosed in the consalidated fnancial
statements where an inflow ef economic benefit is probabla,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recagnised to the extent that it |s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measurad, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, taking into account contractually definad tarms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government. The Group has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it 15 the
primary abligor in all the ravenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and [s also exposed to credit risks.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified asContract Assats (unbilled revenue), while invaicing in excess of ravenues are
classified as Contract Liability (unearned revenue).

a) Workforce management:

Revenue from staffing services e, salary and Incidental expenses of temporary associates along with the service charges are
recogmsed in accordance with the agreed terms as the related services are rendered.

Revenue from training services are recognised over the geriod of training.

Other income
Interest income

Far all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income (s recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is
the rate which exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts ovar tha expected lif2 of the financial instrumant to the grass
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the EIR the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financlal instrument (for example, prepayments, extensions, call and similar aptions]; expected
credit Iosses are considered if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since imtial recogmition,

Dividands are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date on which the Group's right to receive payment is
established.

Employee Benefits
Short-term Employee benalits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, bonus and ex gratia (ncluding non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled whally
within tivelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related servics are classified as shart term
emplayee benefits and are recognized as an expense in the consolidated statament of profit and loss as the related service is
provided,

The employees of the Group are entitiad to compensatad absences. The emplayees can carry farward a portion of the unutilised
accumulating compensated absences. The Group records an obligation for compansated absences in the period in which the
employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The obligation s determined by actuarial valuation performed by
an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projacted unit credit method.

A liability 15 recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation ta pay this
amount as a result of past sarvice provided by the amployee and the cbligation can be sstimated reliably.

Share-based payments

The cost of equity settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the grant date which is based an the Black Scholes
madel. The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an emplayee expense, with a corresponding
increase in equity under "Employee Stock Options reserve”, pver the period that the emplayees become unconditionally entitied
to the options. The expense is recorded separately for each westing portion of the award as if the award .in substance, was
multiple awards.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are madified, the minimum expanse recoanised s the expense had the terms had not
been modified, |f the original terms of the awards ar= met. An additional expense s recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair yalue of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the amployee as measurad at

the ”d'ﬁcaﬂnn
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Past-Empleymant Benafits

Defined Contribution Plans:

& defined contripution plan 1$ 2 post-employment benafit plan under which a Group pays spacifiad cantributions to a saparate
entity and has no ooligation to pay any further amounts, The Group makes contribution to orovident fund n accordances with
Employess Provdant Fund and Miscellanegus Provisicns Act, 1952 and Employ2e States insurance, Contribution pad or payable
in respect of defined contribution plan is recognized as an expanse in the vear in which sarvices ara rendersd by tha amployes.

Dafined Bensfit Plans:

The Group's gratuity benefit schema s 3 dafined henefit pian, The lakilty s recognised n the balance sheet in respact of
gratuity |s the prasant valus of the defined benefit’cbligation a @ palance sheet date less the far value of plan 3ssets,
together with adjustments for unracagnised actunial gain lasses and past sarvice costs, The defined benefit obligation ara
calculated 3t natance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measuramant of the net defined cenefit hability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding interast) and tha effect of the asset celing (if 2ny, sxcleding intersst), are recegnised immediately in ather
comprahensiva income (OCT,

Leases:
As a Lessee:
Transition;

Tha Group has adopted Ind AS 115, effective annual reporting seriad Beginming April 1, 2018 and applisd the standars to its
leases, ratrospactively, with the cumulative affect of intially apalying the Standard, recogrised on the date of inikial application
[Agrd 1, 2018 1=, date of cransition to Ind A5). The cumulative affect of initially agplying this standard nas hesn racagnised as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retainad earmings as on Aprl L, 2018. The Groug has adopted Ind AS 116 using the
madified ratrospectiva mathed far tramsitioning. Consequently, the Group recordad the lease lability at the present value of the
lease payments discountad at the incramantal norrawing rate and tha right of use asset at its carrying amount as If the standard
had oeen apolied since the commencemant date of the lzase, but discounted at the lessee’s incramental pborrawing rate gt the
date of initial apolication,

The Group assassas whether a contract is or contans a leasa, at nception of 3 contract, 4 contract is, or fontains, 3 lease if the
contract convays the right to control the use of an identfied asset far a period of time in exchanga for consideration,

To assess whether a contract conveys the right o contrel the use of an dentified asset, the Group assesces whether:
I the cartact involves the use of an identified asset

li. the Graup has substantially all of the economic banafits from use of the assat through the period of the lease and
lii. tha Group has the right to direct the use of tha asset,

The Group racagnises a right-af-use asset and a corresponding lease habibty with respect to all lease agrasments in which it is
the lesses, axcept for short-term leases [defined as leasas with a leasa term of 12 ‘months ar less| and leasas of low value
assats, For thasg leases, the Group recogmises the laase payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the fease unless anothar systematic basis is more reprasemtative of the tme pattern in which scanomic benafits from the
Ieased asset are cansumed,

Certain |ease arrangaments includes the options ta extend ar terminate ths lease befors the end of the leasa term, AU 3ssets
and fease iabilities ncludes these sptions when it s reasgnably certain that they will be axarcised.

The lease labity s intially measured at amortized cost at the present value of tha lease payments that are net gaid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the nterest rate wmglicit 0 the leass ar, If not readily detgrminaole, using tha
meremantal corrowing rate,

Lease payments includsd in the measurament of the lease hability camgprnise:

» fixed lease gaymants {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incantives;

« variabie lease payments that depend onan index or rate, itially measurad using the index or rats at the cammarncemant
date;

« the amaunt 2xpected to DB payable by the lesses under residual value guaranteas;

* tha sxercise price of purchase options, if tha lassas s reasonably certain to exercisa the options, and

* payments of penaltes for terminating the lease, if the |2ase term reflects the axercisa af 2n aption to terminate the lease.

The lease labilty s presented as a separate (ine in the consolidated statsment of financal cositian, The lease liability s
subsequantlv measured by increasing the carrying amount ko raflect nterest on the |sase liabifity |using the affacfive |ntersst
methad) and By raducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments madsa, The Group remmeasurss the lease liability
{and makas a corresponding adjustment to the refatec rnoht-af-use asset} whanavar

= the leasa term has changed or thare 15 3 change in the assessment of exercise of a purchasa option, in which case tha jsasa
hability is remeasurad by discounting the revised lease paymants using a revised discount rate.

+ the lease payments chanae due to changes in an index of rate ar a change in expectad payment under a quarantesd residual
value, in which cases the lease lability is rameasured ny discaunting tha ravised lease payments using the initial giscaunt rate
(unless the |ease paymants change s dus to 2 change in a floating interast rate, in which £ase a ravised distount rate is used),

* & lease contract s modified and the lzase modification is not accountad for 35 3 saparate lease, in which casa the lease liability
i5 remeasurad by Giscounting the revised |eass payments using a revised discount rate.

Thne right-of-use assats are prasented as a separata line 0 the statement of financial position, The right-of-Usa assars ara
initially recogmized at cost which comprises of the (nitial measurament af ths corresponding lease hamlity, lease payments mads
at or bafore the commencement day and any initial diract casts less any lease ncantives, They are subzequently maasurea at
cost less accumulated depreciation and Impairmant losses, Whenever the Group incurs an cbhigation for costs 1o dismantle and
remove 2 leased assat, restors the site on which it s lacated or restore the underlying assat to the condinon required by the
terms and conditions of tha lease, a provision |5 racagnised and measured. The costs are Included n the ralated right-gf-usa
asset, unless those costs are incurrad to produce inventories,

Right-of-use assets are deprecisted over the shorier period of lzase term and useful life of the underlying asset, If 2 lease
transfers ownership of tha underiying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset raflacts that the Group experts to axercise a
purchase option, the ralated right-of-use dssat is depreciatad aver the useful lif2 of the undertying assat. The depreciation starts
at the pornmancement date of the |2ass,
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Gavernment Grants
Govermment grants are not recognised until there (s reasonable assurance that the Groug will comply with the canditiong
atraching Lo thém and that the grants will be receved.

Gavernment geants-ard recognisad in profit or lass on a Systematic pass aver the pereds o whicn the Group recognises an
aupenses tlig relaced couts for wiih the grancs are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose grmary
condition 15 that the Gioup should purdiase, construct Or otherwist ACquire NON-Current assets are recognised as deferrsd
revenue i e consolidated Dalance sheet and transferred to profit ar loss on @ systematic and rational basis over the us=ryl
lives of the related assets.

Gevarmment grants that are recesvable as compensation for 2wpenses or Insses already wmcurred o fac e purpasa of giving
immediate financial support to the Groep with na fubure related costs ars recagnised in prafit o 1655 10 the pedad (0 which they
becomsa recervapla,

The benefit of a government gan at 3 pelow-marker rate of INCRFASE (5 Freated 4% 3 (OVEFAMENE GrANt measured 48 the
difference G2tween proceeds received and e fair value al the loan nased an pravailing markat intecest rates.

Income-tax

Income tax expenss /ncome « CUrTent tax @xpense Sincame and deferred tex expense Jincame, It is recognized in
profit or loss esxtept 1o the extent thar it ~elates to fems recegnized dractly in eguity or In Other Compranensive Incame. In
which case, the taxis 3ls0 1ecognized directly 10 @Quity of othir Comprenansive INCoie, rspsctivly,

Cureent Tax
Current tax comprises the axpected tax payable or iecoyerable on the taxabie profit orfoss for the year and any adjustment to

the tax payable or recoverable in respect of gravious years, It (s measured at the amount sxpected to be paid to [recovered
fram) the baxanion authorities using the applicable tax rates and tax laws,

* Current tax assets and liailities are offset anly if, the Group has a legally snforceable right to set off the recognized amounts:
and
= Intends @ither to settie on 4 net basis, or to realize the assat ang setthe tha lability simultanzously.

Deferred Tas

Deferred 13x 15 recogmized in respect af temporary differences between the CAITying amount af assets and lianiities for financial
reporting purpose and the gmount considered for 1ax purpose,

Deferrad tax assets are recogmaed for unused tas losses,; unused tax credits and deductibde temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized, Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced fo the extent that it 1s-na |anger arobacle that sufficiant taxable arofit will be
avallable to allow the benefit of gart or all of thar Jeferred tax asset to ge utllized such reductions are reversed when it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable grofits will be available,

Uniecoginized deferred tan assets are reassessed 4t eacl reportung ddté and recoguized to the extent that it has Decame
probable thar future taxable profits will De available 2gainst which they Can De recovered.

DCeferrad tax /s imeasurad st the tax rates that are axpected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax
rates mnacted or substantively snacted by the end of the reporting year.

The measuiement of defered tas assers anc Habahites ceflects the tax consequences that would fallow from the maniner in
which the Group expects, at the reporting date, 1o (8covar or settle the canving amount of its ssseéts and Habilities,

Deferred tay assets and liabilities are offset anly i

i | the antity has a legally spforceable nght 1o set off cuirent tax assets against currant tas liabilities, and
ii] the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities refate to ncome tages favied oy the same taxation authonty on the
same taxable entty,

Fareign currency

Fareign currency transactions:
Foreign currency transachons are recorded on initial cecognition 0o the funchienal currency using the exchange rate at the date
of the transactian,

Monetary assets and labilities denominsted in foregn currsaoies are translated into the functionsl curmency at the exchange
rate at the reporting date.

Exchange differsncas ansing on tha sartiemant ar ransianon of monstary ITems ars racagmzed i grofit or foss 0 the year n
which they anse,

The Growp recognizes a lisbility for any dividend declared but not distnbuted at the @nd of the reporting gyeat, when the
distribution is authorized and the distribution s no longer at the discretion of the Sroup on o before the end af the reporting
paal.

Earnings per share:
Basic Earmings per share is calculated Dy dividing the profif or [0ss for thee vear ottributable to the equity sharshalders by the
waighted average number of pguity shares autstanditg duning the year,

For the puipose of calculating diluted eamings der share, tie profit or loss for Uie ganied attributable to e equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of eauity shares outstanding during the petivd (s adiusted to take (nte dccaunt

= The alter meome tax effect of intarest and other finaneing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and
= Weightad average rumbsr of additional equity shares thet would have been putstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutiva potantial aquity shares,

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Hows are reported usmg the indirect method, whersby profit ¢ (less) for the period o5 agjusted for the efferts of

transactions af 4 non-cash naturs, any deferrats or accnials of past or future operating cash receipks of gayments and eem of

mneame ar witlh Esting or financing cash flews, Casn flows for the year are classified by operating,
g ana hnancing .

Segment Reparting

Cperating sagments die reported (0 a manner consistent seth the interndl raporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker (COOM as defined in Ing AS-108 ‘COgerating Segments” for allocating rescurces and assessing oerformance, The Group
operates in one regortable busineds segment (e, "Statfing services™ Further the geggraphic ségments are not applicable since
assets are only in Inoia,

Significant Palicies | d)

Recent amendments:

Miniskry af Corporata Affars ("MECAT | notifies new stardard or amendmeats 1o the xbng standards. Thers (5 no such
natification smich would have been spplicable fram Apnl . 2020
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3 Property, plant and equipment

:ract:essing Furniture | Office Lesnshold
Description of assets ; 5 Vehicles Improveme |(Building | Total

Machines and fixtures |equipment ol

(Computer)
Deemed Cost
As at April 1, 2018 - - - - - - -
Additions 102.62 41.34 115.34 = 44.50 - 303.80
Assets acquired through business combinatian 389.50 196.74 296,99 298.16 23,20 = 1204.60
Disposals (2.44) - (0.84) (104.48) - - (107.76)
As at March 31, 2019 489.68 238.08 411.49 193.68 67.70 - 1400.64
Additians 211.65 43.50 83.43 - - 148.53 487.11
Disposals (23.12) (18.18) (23.99) (28.98) * b (94.27)
As at March 31, 2020 678.21 263.40 470.93 164.70 67.70 | 148.53 1793.48 |
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2018 |
Accumulated depraciation on acquirad assets p |
through business combination L9597 8234 95.56 845 B ) 450.33 :
Depreciation axpense for the year 95,44 43.10 75.05 39.76 7.28 B 261.63 |
Eliminated on disposal of assets (2.44) (0.59 (0.57) (50.94) - = (54.54)
As at March 31, 2019 273.97 122.95 170.04 78.27 22.19 - 667.42
Depreciation expense for the period 153.60 41.81 111.97 35.59 12.32 5.78 361.07
Eliminated on disposal of assets (20.11) (10.39) (19.27) (28.98) - - (78.75)
As at March 31, 2020 407.46 154.37 262.74 84.88 34.51 5.78 949.74
As at March 21, 2020 270.75 109.03 208.19 79.82 33.19 142.75 | B843.73
As at March 31, 2019 215.71 | 115.53 241.45 115.41 45,51 - : 733.21
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4 Other intangible ts

G 2 Right to use Customer Intellectual
Description of assets Softw S d

P aitvane Righty Trademark RelationShip Property Total
Deemed Cost/Cost
As at April 1, 2018 -
Additicns 13.39 - < - 13.39
Assets acquired through business combination 338.40 432.45 18,809.14 178.65 19,758.64
As at March 31, 2019 351.79 432.45 18,809.14 178.65 19,772.03
Additions 85.18 - - - 85.18
Disposals/ reclassifications [1.64) - - - (1.54)
As at March 31, 2020 435.33 432.45 18,809.14 178.65 19,855.57
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2018
Accumulated depraciation on acquired assets . 5
through business combination 149.09 54.06 80.47 283.62
Dapreciztion expense for the year 85.25 32.44 4,093.62 g8.18 4,309.49
As at March 31, 2019 234.34 | 86.50 4,093.62 178.65 4,593.11
Depreciation expense for the period 103.81 43,24 6,260.71 - 65,416.76
Eliminated on disposal of assets/ reclassifications (1.24) - - - (1.34)
As at March 31, 2020 336.81 129.74 10,363.33 178.65 11,008.53
As at March 31, 2020 98.52 302.71 8,445.81 - 8,847.04
As at March 31, 2019 117.45 345,95 14,715.52 - 15,178.92

Ls
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5

Other financial assets
. As at March 31 As at March 31
Pa 4 4
rticulars 2020 2019
Non- current
Depaosit for premisas 471.44 313.21
Less:= Provisian for doubtful deposits (152.21) (B1.63)
318,23 231.58
Unbiled revenue towards reimbursable gratulty and campensatad absences 4 650.16 283204
|Fixed Depaosits with original maturity of mare than 12 manths. 1.49 -
Total 4,979.88 3,163.62
Current
Advance ta Employeses |
- considered good | 69.25 102,54
- considered doubtful | 8.23 13.73
Less:- Provision for doubtful advance | (8.23) {13.73)
‘ 69,25 102.54
Unbilled revenus | 4,7756.99 5,459.99
| Claim recatvable on business transfer | - 5b.35
Less:- Provision for doubtful advance | = {56.35)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.83 227.08
|Interest Income on Income Tax Refund 11.97 =
Total 4,859.04 6,789.58

6 Deferred tax asset (net)
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Deferred tax assat 373.30 589.38
Deferrad tax Liabilities 1,386.84 2.562.27
Taotal (1,013.53) (1,972.39)
6.1 Movement in deferred tax balances
. For the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars Opening balance ':::‘.ﬁ'::efo;r; R““g';se‘i | Closing batance
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Pravision for employee benefits 1,385,953 {309.83) 24351 1,329.63
Property, plant and equipment {283 85] {85.85) (949.51)
Provision for doubtful debts 229.27 i71.88) 157.61
Unbilled revenue {744:53) (744.50)
Others 43035 (155,83} - 274.42
Pravisian for Bonus 161.57 3055 - 213.22
Customer Relationship {2.552.27) 1,757 37 (1,294.40)
Net tax asset/(liabilities) (1,972.39 715.35 243.51 (1,013.53)
5.2 Movement in deferred tax balances

Period from February 20, 2018 to March 31, 2019

Particulars Balance on Recognised in Recognised in Closing balance
acguisition profit and Loss ocI
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in relation to:
Provision for amployee benefits 706.03 635,57 ST P ] 1395.95
Property, plant and equipment (587.87) (295.99) - (883.86)
Provision for rent escalation < = = =
Provision for doubtful debts 19.83 209.44 - 229.27
unbilled revenue -0.02 [ 744.48) = (744.50)
Others 15746 272.89 - 430.35
Provisian for Bonus 658,43 94.24 - 162.67
Deduction of Section B01JAA 421,63 {421.63) - -
Customer Relatianship (3173.19) £10.92 - 12562.27)
| Net tax asset/(liabilities) (2387.70) 36]_.=.92 53.35 (1972.39)

1'%

/'
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7

Trade receivables

Particiilars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Unsecured, cansiderad good 15,435.27 10,550.89
Unsecurad, considerad doubtful 52221 574.83
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowances) (522.21) (574.83)
15,435.27 10,550.89
Total 15,435.27 10,550.89
Balance as at April 01, 2018
Allowance for doubtful debrs 574,83
Balance as at March 31, 2019 574.83
Allowance for doubtful debts (52.62)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 522.21
8 Loans
: As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Staff loans 2.1 _
Lean to Subsidairy = =
Total 2.11 -
9 Cash and cash equivalents
As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Balances with banks
- In current account 1,378.21 2,114.15
- in other deposit accounts - original maturity of three months or less
5,410.56 6,823.11
Cash on hand - 0.03
Total 7,788.77 8,937.29 |
10| Bank balance other than Cash and cash equivalents
- in other deposit accounts - original maturity more than 2 months but
less than 12 months 4,719.35 4,465.90
Total 4,719.35 4,465.90
11 Other current assets

N

Particulars

Prepaid Expensas
Balancas with Government authority
GST recevable
Other receivables
- cansidered doubtful
Less: Provision for unrealisable assets

Advance to Suppliers

- considered good

Security Depasit - Current
Total

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2020 2019
321.28 316.13
23.01 12,94
45,08 160.11
45.36 4.55
20,78 20.78
(20.78) (20.78)
101.45 1323
101.45 13,23
279.97 303.38
766,15 810.34
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12 Equity share capital

Paiticulars As at March 31, As at March
2020 31, 2019

Authorised share capital

9,02,93,460 Equity Shares of # 10/- each 9,029.35 9,029.35

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:

7,22,19,134 Equity Shares of # 10/- each Fully Paid up 7,221.91 7,221.91

Total 7,221.91 7, 221.91

12.1 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :-

Particulars Numbers Amount
No of shares as at 01st April 2018

Add:- additional shares issued during the year 7,22,19,134 7,221.91
As at the end of the year 31st March 2019 7,22,19,134 7,221.91
Add:- additional shares issued during the year - -
As at the end of the year 31st March 2020 7,22,19,134 7,221.91

12.2 Terms right attached to the equity shares

The Group has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity is
entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity share will
be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all the preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

12.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

. As at March 31, As at March
Particulars 2020 31, 2019
Fully paid equity shares
Manpower Solutions Limited (Holding Company) 6,42,76,359 6,42,76,359
% Holding 8§9.00% 89.00%
New Lane Trading LLP 45,48,532 45,48,532
% Holding 6.30% 6.30%

13 Other equity

; As at March 31, As at March
Particulars 2020 31, 2019
Securities Premium Account 24,643.61 24,643.61
Share based payments 54.86 =
Retained earnings (5,866.65) (3,839.81)
Total 18,831.82 20,803.80

I




14 Borrowings

Paiticulaie As at March 31, As at March
2020 31, 2019

Non-current

Vehicle loans 43.48 78.77

Total 43.48 78.77

Current |

Loan repayable on demand from Bank | 2,183.62 =

Total 2,183.62 -

Terms and condition of outstanding berrowings are as fallows:

4.1 Vehicle loan :
(i) Vehicle Loan of Rs. 5.19 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: 7.71 lakhs) is from ICICI Bank
carrying an interest rate of 8.10% The loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments alang with interest,
from the date of loan i.e. February 15,2017. The end date of the loan is January 15, 2022 and the loan is
secured way of hypothecation of the respective vehicle.

(i) Vehicle Loan of Rs. 59.05 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: 78.89 lakhs) is from Kotak
Mahindra Prime carrying an interest rate of 7.87% The loan is repayable in 60 monthly installments along
with interest, from the date of loan i.e. October 26,2017, The end date of the loan is October 1, 2022 and
the loan is securad way of hypothecation of the respective vehicle.

(ili) Vehicle Loan of Rs. 6.38 lakhs as at March 31, 2020 (March 31, 2019: 9.06 lakhs) is from Toyota
Financial Services (I) Limited carrying an interest rate of 8.85% The loan is repayable in 60 manthly
installments along with interest, fram the date of loan i.e. April 25,2017, The end date of the loan is April
20, 2022 and the loan is secured way of hypothecation of the respective vehicle.

14.2 The Group has taken cash credit and overdraft facilities.
These facilities are repayable on demand and are secured primarily by way of pari passu first charge on
the entire current assets of Innovsource Services Private Limited and also on the current assets of the co

borowwer a) VS Global Services Private Limited and b) Affluent Glabal Services Private Limited

15 Trade payables
Particilars As at March 31, As at March
2020 31, 2019
Trade payables . |
-Micro and small enterprises (refer note no 27) 0.18 19,36 |
-Other than micro and small enterprises 1,439.90 790.69 '
Total 1,440.08 810.05 |
|
16 Other current financial liabilities
Paiticulars As at March 31, As at March
2020 31, 2019
Current Maturities of Long term Debt 27.14 30.49
Payable for capital purchases - 11.18
Employee Benefits Payahle 9,571.69 10,783.49
Deposit received 54.89 57.32
Interest accrued but not due 0.44 0.71
Other Current Liabilities 564.81 222.15
Accrued compensation to employees 5,370.35 4,509.15
Put Option Liability against purchase of NCI share 1,847.00 =
Total 17,436.32 15,614.49
17 Other current liabilities
. As at March 31, | As at March
Particulars 2020 f 31, 2019
Statutory Liabilities £,771.22 6,438.32
Advance from Customers 117.01 -
Others 257.34 215.34 |
Total 7,145.57 6,653.66
[ |

A
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18 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year
ended March

Period from
February 20,

Total

31, 2020 2018 to March
31. 2019
Sale of services 2,07,361.56 1,41,280,91

2,07,361.56

1,41,280.91

19 Other Income

Particulars

For the year
ended March

Period from
February 20,

31, 2020 2018 to March
31. 2019

Interest on income tax refund 165.99 -
Bank deposits (at amortised cost) 497.46 477.29
Dividend on mutual funds 0.93 14,74
Miscellaneous income 33.43 29.51
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 15.57 1.20
Interest on Loans Q.25 —
Excess Pravision/Liability no longer required written back 83.39 60.72
Interest income on security deposits 20.60 14.94
Gain on account of early termination of leases = 1.73
Net gain arising on financial assets designated as at FVTPL - 0.13
Gain on Fair Valuation of Put Liability 878.78 -
Total 1,696.40 600.26

20 Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

For the year
ended March

Period from
February 20,

31, 2020 2018 to March
31.2019 |
Salaries and Wages 1,80,330.06 1,22,175.486
Contribution to provident and other funds 13,838.48 11,579.62
Gratuity 732.77 805.26
Staff Welfare Expenses 3,985.86 672.88
Expense on employee stock option scheme 54.86 =

Total

1,98,942.03

1,35,033.22

21 Finance Costs

Particulars

For the year
ended March

Period from
February 20,

31, 2020 2018 to March

31,2019
Interest on loans from banks and financial institutions 45,36 13.56
Interest on lease liability 140.54 113.35
Total 185.90 126.91

{
7%

} 1
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22 Depreciation and amortisation expense

23

23.1

Particulars

For the year
ended March

Period from
February 20,

31, 2020 2018 to March
31. 2019
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 361.07 261.63
Depreciation of right-of-use asset 817.76 617.20
Amortisation of intangible assets 6,416.76 4,309.48
Total 7,595.59 5,188.31
Other expenses

Particulars

For the year
ended March

Period from
February 20,

31, 2020 2018 to March
31. 2019

Auditor's Remuneration 74.66 41.46
Communication expenses 284.11 250.20
Lodging and Boarding Expenses 27.00 11.94
Power and Fuel 233.31 162.05
Rent - Office 472.99 442.13
Repairs and Maintenance 90.60 143.49
Insurance 43,14 70.26
Rates and Taxes 6.14 10.86
Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables 46.63 634.34
Bad debts and other receivables written off - 121.43
Professional and consultancy fees 483.16 1,625.45
Outsourcing Expenses 313.48 338.56
Cost for Support Services 311.80 111.51
Recruitment and training expenses 209.44 319.19
Travelling and conveyance 335.79 288.12
License Subscription 14.51 13.82
Expense towards corparate social responsibility 44.69 1.99
Miscellaneous Expenses 811.91 448.88
Loss on Fair Valuation of Put option - 120.27
Total 3,803.36 5,155.95
Payments to auditors

For the year
ended March

Period from
February 20,

Rasticulors 31, 2020 2018 to March
31, 2019

a) For audit 43.00 35.00

b) Tax Audit 5.00 575

¢) For other services 26.66 0.71

Total 74.66 41.46

v
7
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24 Current tax and deferred tax

24.1 Income tax recognised in profit and loss

Particulars For the year For the year

ended March ended March
31,2020 31,2019

Current tax:

Profit before tax (1,828.87) (3,849.52)

Tax rate 29.12% 29.12%

Income tax expense calculated (incl. surcharge) (832.57) (1,120.98)

Deferred tax asset not recognised 78.52 349.50

Effects of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profits 39.49 62.91

Exempt income (0.23) (8.71)

S0JJAA tax incentives (693.68) (192.28)

Adaoption of new tax regime under section 115BAA on deferred tax including

reversal of MAT credit entitlement 397.31

Tax expense pertaining to earlier years (10.32) =

Impact of change in tax rate 181.10 §859.81

Others 13.63 =

DTL reversal on Amortisation of Customer Relationship =

Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss (526.75) /| (49.75)

24.2 Deferred Tax
The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset, of Rs. 78.52 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2020 (Rs 349.50
lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2013) , with respect to its tax losses and other temporary differences as it is unable
to guantify the probability of its off-set against estimated immediate future profits. The estimated future profits are
based on estimated business plan, hence, the recognition is sensitive to the changes in the business plan.

25 Basic earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as

L

follows:

For the year For the year
Particulars ended March ended March
| 31, 2020 31. 2019
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Group (1,302.13) (3,799.76)
Weighted average number of equity shares 7.22,19,134 7,22,19,134
Basic and Diluted sarnings per share (1.80) (5.26)

The share options outstanding are anti-dilutive (which decreases the loss per share), hence such conversion is not
considered for the pupose of dilution and the dilutive earnings per share is same as basic earnings per share.
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26 Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
. ' As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019
Claims not acknowledged as debts (refer note 26,1) 137.85 105.79

26.1 Claims not acknowledged as debts principally relates to cases lodged by employees against the Group. It also ncludes cases
lodgad by employees against the erstwhila holding Company relating to staffing business, which are now a contingent liability
for the Group in lieu of the purchase of staffing business from the erstwhile Holding Company. The management believes,
based on issues involved, that no material habilities will accrue in respect of these cases and accordingly no cash outflow is
expected and the management believes that based on the nature of cases, the claims are not expected to be material.

26.2 Provident fund
On 28 Fehruary 2019, the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India delivered a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be
applied in determining the components of salaries and wages on which Provident Fund (PF) contributions need to be made by
establishments. The Group has been legally advised that there are various interpretative challenges on the application of the
judgment retrospectively, Based on such legal advice, the management believes that it is not practicable at this stage to
reliably measure the contingencies relating te amounts payable if any on potential demands relating to Provident Fund.
27 Disclosures required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
& As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2020 2019 |
(i) Principal amount remaming unpaid to any supplier as at the end 0.18 19,36
of the accountina vear
(i) Interest due thereon ramaining unpaid to any supplier as at the = =
end of the accounting vear
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the = 5
pavment made to the supplier bevond the appointed day
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay d ¥
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
rha MSMFD Art
(v) The amaount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end = =
of the accounting vear
{vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the - -
succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23
The Group has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under Micro,Small and Medium
Enterprises Developmeant Act, 2006 and hence the disclosure reguired undar the Act.
2B Leases
28.1 Transition
On transition, the adoption of the new standard resultad in recognition of ‘Right of Use' asset of # 2205.36
Lacs and a lease liability of # 2306,35 Lacs, The cumulative effect of applying the standard of # 100.49
Lacs was credited to retained earnings, Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from operating
activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.
28.2 The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with
i. a4 similar end date
Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
il. months of lzase term on the date of initial applicatian
Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurament of the right-of-use asset at the date of mitial
e application,
28.3 The effect of depreciation and interest related to Right Of Use Asset and Lease Liability are reflacted in the

Profit & Lass Account under the heading "Depreciation and Amortisation Expense” and "Finance costs”
respectively under Mote No 22 and 21.

28.4 The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2018 s 10%.
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28.5 Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March

28.6

28.7

28.8

28.9

Category of ROU [

Particulars Gifice Shace Furni@re & | Total
Fittings |
Balance as of April 1, 2018 - - -
Additions 2,172.45 33.41 2,205.86
Depreciatian (593.81) (23.39) (617.20)
Celetions (58.09) = (58.09)
Balance as of March 31, 2019 1,519.55 10.02 1,529.57
Balance as of April 1, 2019 1,519.55 10.02 1,529.57
Additions 739.70 5:02 744.72
Depreciation (806.78) (10.98) (817.76)
Deletions (46.23) - (46.29)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 1,406.18 4.06 1,410.24

The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as of March 31, 2020:

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2020 2019
Current Lease liabilities 616.93 705.55
Non-current lease liabilities 891.63 907.56
Total 1,508.56 1,613.11

The following is the movement in lease liabilities:

Particulars

Amount (Rs.)

Balance as of April 1, 2018

Additions/Deletions 2,306.36
Finance cost accrued dunng the period 113.35
Payment of lease liabilities (806.60)
Balance as of March 31, 2019 1,613.11
Balance as of April 1, 2019 1,613.11
Additions/Deletions 675.81
Finance cost accrued during the penod 140.54
Payment of lease liabilities (920,90)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 1,508B.56

The table below provides details regarding the contractual ma

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2020 5035

Mot later than 1 year 722.97 820.00

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 960.95 970,04

Later than 5 years 24.11 50.23
1,708.03 1,840.27

turities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basi:

The Grou[ does not face a significant liguidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the

Group's treasury function.

Amounts recognised in profit and loss

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars

2020 2019
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets B17.76 617.20
[ntersst expense on lease liabilities 140.54 113.35
Expense relating to short-term leases 472.99 442,13

Expense relating to leases of low value assets
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29 Related parties transactions

29.1 Names of the related parties and related party relationships

Particulars

|Relationship

Manpower Solutions Limited

Innovsource Services Private Limited (w.e.f June 28, 2019)
Innovsource Facilities Private Limited {w.e.f June 28, 2013)
V5 Global Services Private Limited (w.e.f July 5, 2015)
Affluent Global Services Private Limited (w.e.f September 17, 2019)
Key Management Personnel

Sudhakar Balakrishnan (w.e.f March 21, 2018)

Bandaru Venkaiah Naidu

Ankur Vidyasagar Gulati

Manish Mehta

Miladr Mukhopadhyay

Nilay Pratik

Jiten Umesh Poojara

Shishir Gorle (till 27 June 2018)

Raja Shekhar Reddy (till 27 Juns 2018)

Satya Prasan Rajguru

Shailesh Narayanrao Ardhapurkar

Satish Sninivasan

Tejas Sanghvi

Monali Pramod Joshi

Relative of Key Managerial Person "KMP"
Ira Dash Rajguru
Archana Shailesh Ardhapur (wef January 02, 2020)

|Holding company

Subsidiary company
Subsidiary company
Subsidiary company
Subsidiary company

Director

Diractor

Director

Director

Director

Director

| Director

| Director

Diractor

Managmg Director
Managing Diractor
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Financal Officer
Company secrefary.

Relative of KMP

Wife of Mr. Satya Prasan

29.2 Details of related party transactions

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31,

2019
Manpower Solutions Limited
Issuance of shares during the year (including Securities premium account) 28,470.00
Remuneration to KMP of Parent 245.08 181.15
Reimbursement of expenses of Parent 3.65 10.81
Remuneration to KMP of Subsidiaries 910,91 580.67
Raimbursement of expenses of Subsidiarias 23.74 7.11

29.3 Details of related party closing balances

Particulars

| As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, |
2019

Accrued Compensation to KMP of Parent
Accrued Compensation to KMP of Subsidiaries

Accrued Reimbursement of KMP expenses of Subsidiaries

87.11
7.16
13.14

21.45

2
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30 Segment information
The Group & considered to be a =ingle segment ‘Management sarvice’ - engaged in the busimess of providing management sarvicas
to staffing, house company and other facilties company, It comprises of nouse keeping seryvices and ather related sarvices. All other
ctivitias of the Group revolve around its main business, Tne Manaaing Director (MD) of the Group, has baen identified as the chisf
operating decision maker {CODM], The CODM evaluates the Group's performance, allocates resources based on anmalys:ss of the
various perfarmance indicaters of the Greup as a single unit. Therefore, the Board of directars hava concluded that there s only one
operating reportable segment as dafined by Ind AS 108 -Oparating Segments.

31 Employee benefits
i} Defined Contribution Plan
The Group's contribution to Provident fund and other funds aggregating dunng the period endad march 31, 2020 s ¥ 13838.48 Lakhs
{and during the year ended 31 Margh 2019 ® 11579,62 Lakhs) nas osen recognised in the Statemant of profit or foss under the head
smployee benefits axpansa,

i) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India {(fundec). The group's defined benafit gratuity plan is 3 final salary plan for
ampiovess, which requires contribution to be made to 3 separately administered fund.

The fund i managed by a trust which is governad by the poard of trustees. The board of trustees are responsible for the
admumistration of the olan assets and for the defimtion of the investmeant strategy.

During tha prawvigus y2ar, the Group has changsd the benafit schame in [in2 with Payment of Gratuty Act, 1872 by increasing
manetary ceiling from 10 lakhs to 23 |akhs, for these =mploy=es who are gatting benefit as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,
Changa in lability ( if any) due to this'scheme change Is recognised as past sarvice cost.

A saparata trust fund {5 created to manage the Gratuity nlan and tha cantnbutions towards the trust fund is done as guided by rule
103 of Income Tax Rules | 1952

Through its defined benefit plans the Group is expased to a number of risks, the most significant of

(1) Salary risk:

The prasent value of the defined banefit plan lability 15 calculated by reference to the future salaries of members, As such, an
incraase in tha salary of the members mara than assumed level will increasa the plan's hability.

{2) Interast rate risk
& fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G,5sc, Rate will increase the prasant value of tha liability requiring higher provision.
& fall in the discount rate genarally increasas the mark to market value of the assets depending en the duration of assat,

(2). Investment Risk:

The prasant valua of the defined benefit plan liabilty is calculated using a discount rate which s detarmined by refgrence to market
yialds at the =nd af the reporting period on government bonds. If the return on plan assat 15 below this rate, |t will creata a plan
daficit, Currantly, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investmeants 0 govarnment securiti=s, and othar debt
instruments.

(4). Asset Liahility Matching Risk:

The glan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan (s nvested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1852,
this generally reducas ALM risk,

(5). Mortality risk:
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable far life time and payable tll reurement age only, £lan does not have any lengavity
risk,

The significant actuarial
Particulars

ions used for the purposes of the actuarial val were as fi
Valuation as at

As at March 31, 2020| A 3tMarch 31,

2019
[i). Financial assumptions
Discount rat2 (p.a.] 4.36% - 5.85% 6.55% - 7.79%
Salary ascalation rate (p.a.) 3.38% - 7% 2.52% - T%
Salary 2scalation rate (p.a.)-Project Staff 9.00% 6.00%

Rate of employes turnover (2.3.) Below Syears 477 and

5 years and zbove 5%

Below Sy=ars 45%
and 5 years and
abave 7%

70.00%

Rate of amployas turnover (p.a. ]--Project Staff F0.00%

(ii). Demographic assumptions
Martality rate

1ALM 2012-14 TALM 2006-08

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:
As at March 31, 2020 A5 3t March 31,

2019
|Current service cost £10.07 | 338.73
Past seryice cost and (gains)/losses from sattleameants = -
Net interest expenss 122.70 258.53 |
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or lo 732.77 605.26
Remeasuremant an the net definad benefit Liapility
Actuanal (gamnsi/loss ansing form changas in financial 704 28.58
assumaotions
Actuaral (gains)/loss ansing form changes in demooraphic (121.18) (44.92)
assumations
Actuanal (gainsi/loss arising form expenence adiustments 352,14 177.12)
Return an glan assats (excluding amount included in net .30 0.06
IntErest expensa |
Adjustment to recognise tha effect of assat cailing
Components of defined benefit casts recognised in other 968.22 (93.40)
comorehensive income
Tatal 1,700.99 511.86
1
| ]
Notes:

{) The Current service cost and the net interest axpense for the period are ingfuded in the ‘Employee b2nefits axpensa [ine item in
the statement of profit and loss.

i} The remeasurament of the nat define nanefits liamility s includad in other comprahansive income for the year 2nded Marcn 31,
2020 and for the year ended March 31, 201

-5\
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il

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined

benefit plans is as follows:

' As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31,

2019
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 3,223.22 2,145.31
Fair value of plan assets al the end of the year 32.54 57.671
Unfunded status -Surplus/ (Deficit) 3,190.68 2,087.64
Mo in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars | As at March 31, 2020 AsatMarch Bl
2019

Opening of defined benefit abligation 2,141.59 2,218.47
Current service cost 610.18 357.03 |
Past service cost = >
Interest on defined benefit obhgation 125.67 148,55
Remeasurements due to: 0.29 0.36 |

Actuarial loss / [gain) arising from change in financial 726,34 (432.58)

assumpotions

Actuarial loss / [gain) ansing from change in demagraphic {121.27) 397.24

assumptions

Actuanal loss / (gain) arising on account of experience | 356.47 143.78

chanaeas | |
Benefits paid | (626.05) (687.54))
Closing of defined benefit obligation | 3,223.22 2,145.31 |

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 L) at;:]a‘;:h 31,
Opening fair value of plan assets 57.67 91.26
Emplayer contribution 2.07 0.07
Intarest on plan assets 3.26 6.08
Administration sxpensas a =
|Remeasurement due to: - -
Return on Plan Assets | Excluding Interest Income (0.301 (0.50)
Benefits paid (30.15) (39.24)
| Assets distributed an settlement = =
Closing of defined benefit obligation | 32.54 57.67

Major category of plan ts (as a percentage of total plan assets)

As at March 31,

Particulars .As at March 31, 2020 2019
Trust Managed/Insurer Managed Funds 100% 100%
‘Total 1.00 1.00

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the

end of the reporting period, while holding all ether assumptions constant,

The faollowing table summarizes the impact on the reported defined benefit cbligation at the end of the reporting period arising on

account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 1% |
Impact on defined benefit obligation

i March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
a) Discount rate

Increase by 1% (551.42) (638.11)

Decrease by 1% 465.08 519.26
b) Salary Escalation Rate

Increase by 1% 604.77 657.10

Decrease by 1% [432.75) (486.87)
¢) Employee Turnover Rate

Increase by 25% [LY 1%) 477.04 668.06

Decrease by 25% (LY 1%) (402.61 (424.26)

Notes:

1) The sensitivity analysis presentad above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit obligation as it 1s
unlikely that the chanae in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as soma of the assumptions may be correlated.

it}. Furthermore, in presanting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which Is the same meathod as applied in

calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.

iii) There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:
Maturity Analysis of the Benefit Payments: From the Fund
Prajected benefits payabie in future years from the dates of reporting:

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31,
2019

Within 1 Year 152.33 157.21

2-5 years 852.08 626.27 |

|&—10 Years 303.00 745.58

|11 years and aboye 4,334.22 2,073.21

V4
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32 Financial instruments

32.1 Financial instruments by category

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

Particulars Total carrying Total fair value
value
As at March 31, 2020
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Non-Current
Other financial assets 4,979.88 4,979.88
Current
Cash and cash squivalents 7,788.77 7,788.77
Trade recevables 15,435.27 15,435.27
Other financial assets 4,859.04 4,859.04
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-Current
Borrowing 43.48 43.48
Lease habilities 891.63 B891.63
Current
Lease habilities 516.93 616.93
Trade payables - -
Other financial liabilities 17,436.32 17,436.32
As at March 31, 2019
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Non-Current
Other financial assets 3,163.62 3,163.62
Current
Cash and cash equivalents 8,937.29 8,937.25
Trade recaivables 10,550.89 10,550.89 |
Othar financial assets 5,789.58 6,789.58 |
Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-Current
Borrowing 78.77 78.77 |
Lease liabilities 907.56 907.56 |
Current
Lease liabilities 705.55 705.55
Trade payables = -
Other financial liabilities 15614,49 15,614 .45

32.2 Capital management

32.3

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return te stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group consists of net debt offset by cash and bank balances and taotal equity
of the Companv.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group monitors and manages the financial risks to the operations of the group. These risks
include market risk, cradit risk, intarest risk and liquidity risk,

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group., The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group uses its
own trading records to rate its major customers. The Group's exposure ta financial loss from defaults
are continuously monitored.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across various geographical areas.
Ongoing credit evaluation is perfarmed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk refers to insufficiency of funds to meet the financial obligations. Liquidity Risk
Management implies maintenance of sufficient cash to meet obligations when due,

The Group continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by assessing the maturity
nrofiles of financial assats a ilities.
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32 Financial instruments (Cont.)

32.4

Maturities of financial liabilities
Table showing maturity profile of non-denvative financial habilities:

Particulars Upto One year 1-5 years Total
March 31, 2020

Borrowing 2,183.62 43.48 2,227.10
Trade payables 1,440.08 - 1,440.08
Other financial liabilities 17,436.32 - 17,436.32
March 31, 2019

Borrowing = 78.77 78.77
Trade Payables 810.05 = 810.05
Other financial liabilities 15,614.49 - 15,614.49

The above table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is
based on the earliest date on which the Grouo mav be reauired to pav.

Market risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises of currency risk and interest rate risk. In the normal course of business and in accordance
with our policies, we manaae these risks throuah a variety of strateqies.

i). Currency risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates, The Group is domiciled in India and has its revenues and other major transactions in its functional
currency i.e. INR. Accordingly the Group is not exposed to any currency risk.

ii). Interest rate risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liahilities that are measured at amortised cost:

The management believes the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximate their fair values.
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33 First-time adoption of Ind-AS

33.1 First time Ind AS adoption reconciliations

(i) Reconciliation of total eguity as at March 31, 2018:

33.2

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2019
Total equity as per pravious GAAP 24,030.91
Ind AS adiustments;
[mpact on adoption of Ind A5 115 a. [137.95)
Provision for doubtful debts . (50.24)
Fair Valuation of Secunty Deposits d. 17.72
Reversal of Goodwlll amortization E52.70
Interast imcome on security deposit 1.13
amartisaton of Customer Ralationship {4,093,52)
Ceferred tax on [nd AS adjustmeants e, 340.29
Fair Valuation of Put Liability (120.27)
Others {37.8B8)
Total adjustments {3,227.22)
Total equity 20,803.69
(ii) Reconciliation of total compr income for the year ended March 31, 2019

MNotes For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019
Profit as per previous GAAP (686.02)
Impact an adoption of Ind AS 115 a. (49, 26)
Fair Valuabon of finance assats d. 15.07
Reclassification of Actuarial Gain/(Loss) c. 33.40
Shara Issue £xpenses adjusted with Secunties Premium F 124.12
Provision for doubtful detits b. (2.78)
Raversal of Goodwill amoruzation 6339.53
amartisation on Customer Relatonship (4.093.62)
Deferred tax on above adjustments
Fair Valuation of Put Liability (120.27)
Caferrad tax on above adjustrments e. 286,34
Total effect of transition to Ind AS (3.113.86)
Profit under Ind AS (3,799.88)
Other comprehensive incoma [nat of tax] e, (20.05)
Total Comprehensive Income (3,839.92)

Note: Under previous GAAP, total caomprehensive income was not reported. Therefore, the above reconciliation starts with
profit under the previous GAAP.

Notes to reconciliation

- On transiuon, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recagmition of 'Right of Use' asset of # 2205.86 Lacs and 3 lease hability of

2306, 35 Lacs. The cumulative affect of applying the standard of # 100.49 Lacs was credited to retained earnings. Ind AS 116 will rasult
In an increase i cash Inflows fram operating activities and an Increase (n cash autflows from finaneing activities on account of lease
paymeants.

. Tha provisian /s mades against trade recalvables based on “expectad credit loss”™ modal a5 per Ind A5 105. Unger [-GAAP the provision

was made wnan tha recaivanla turned doubtful bassd on the 355855mant an Case 1o {ase basis,

. Both under [ndian SAAP and Ind AS. the Group has recognised costs related to its post-smployment defined benefit plan on an actuanal

basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, Including actuanal gains and lossss, are charged to orefit or loss. Under Ind A5,
rameasuremeants (comprising of actuanal gams and losses, the effact of the asser cailing, axcluding amounts \ncluded in net interast on
the net defined benefit labidity and tha return on plan assets excluding amounts ncluded in Ret intérast on tha net defined penafit
liability ) are recogmised immadiately in the balance shest with 3 corresponding debit or Credit to retained earnings through OCL

. Under Indian GAAP, there are certain security deposits (refundable) given which are carred at nominal value. [nd AS requires to

measure these assets at fair value at inception and subseguently these assats ara measured at amortized cost. At inception date, Group
recognises difference betwaen deposit fair value and nominal valus as Right to use asset and same s being recognised as degreciation
axpensa on straight line basis over the |ease penod. Further, Group recognises notional intarest incmoe on these deposit over the |gase
term.

. Under Previous GAAP, defarrad taxes are racogmisad for the tax effect of tming gifferences betwean accounting profit and taxable profit

for the year using the income statement approach. Under Ind AS, deferred taxes are recogmsed using the balance sheet for future tax
conseguences of temporary differences betwaen the carrying value of assets and lisbihties and thar respective tax basses,

The vanous transitional adjustments |ead to tamporary Sifferences such as recegrbion of gafarrag tax smpact on provision for doubtful
gebts as per ECL model, Defarrad tax adjustmants are racognisad in corralation ta the underlying transaction sither in retained earnings
or 3 separate component of Squity

Under Previous GAAPR, the share issu8 expensas are charged off to the profit or loss account, whergas Ind AS requiras this to be diractly
debited to other equity

"8
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FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited
Notes ferming part of the Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the period from February 20, 2018 to March 31, 2019

Subsidiaries acquired; Businseees duguire
Place of |
Name of acquiree Principal activity and Ac date
Inrovsoarce Facilit Facilry Management Services Iindia {lune 25 2018
Irnovsource e Private Lirnited Manpowar supply services Inidia Hupe 28 1018
w5 Ginbal Servicas Private Limitsd IT enabled Seryices [ndia ;Jul\‘ 5, 201E
Irdield Tnfotech Prvate Limited IT enabled Servicas India uly 5, 2018
Affiuent Global Services Private Uinited Tachnology Services [ndia [Saptember 17, 2018
Linktag Glchal Servces Privata Limited Technology Sardices g |September 17, 2018
Consideration transizrred
. Innovsource Faci {“I‘.‘nﬂon.’te V5 Global Services hﬂ'll:lent G'.nbal
Particular i Services Private = R Services Private
Limited A Frivate Limitad g
Limited
Cash 12.549.99 5,254.87
Iesue of Shares - -
Contingent consideration arrangemeant 330,00 330.00 | — =
ACQUISHION Cost
Acguisiton-related costs amounting to 85.511.65 Lacs have been excluded from the consideration transferreg and have been recognisad as an sxpense
in Consofidated Statament of profit and loss 0 the current year, within the 'Other sspenses line (tem,
Assets acguired and liab recogiised at the date of ac t
Rs. in lac
5 . Innovsource P | Affluent Global
Particular &nnnvanfc;;ﬁr:‘;us firkvate Facilities Private “zg::‘::ll_si;:::’ | Services Private
Limited Limited
|Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,005 af1.0a 2,243.83| 42943
Bank balance ather than above Bl
| Trade and otner recenvables 9,234 514,59 2,644.74| 248022
|Other financial assets 3,529 60.55 716.25| 490.11
|Other current asssts 162 13.52 7n.on| 35.82
13,938.22 1,197.79 5,674.82 1,952.04
|Non-current assets
|Mant and equipment 494,59 0.22 196,57 5275
| Right-af-use asset 0.09 IZO,ﬂSl 382,79
| Goodwill 135.90 143.00
Criver Intangibles 12.65 38,18
cwip - 137.66(
Defarrad tax assdts net 12.04 675.41 46.95
Cther financial assats .12 110.59 33.67
L.765.48 25.24 1.444.90
erept Investimant - -
Nar-surrent tax assers (nat 17530
12,165.16 191.17 3,002.36 72147
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables .27 156.62 83.63 L80.20
Cther currant liabilities 31681 158.48 1.273.37 245.31
Cthar financial liabilnies 9.087.11 414.56 3;163.36
Prowvisinns 257.0% 19,77 41.83
12,590.44 748.54 4,762.19
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax habilities .00
Borrowings 110.53
Lease llabilitiss 1,291.55 = 130.87 EFE]
Previnions 408,44 79.74 175.63 B1
1,659.99 79.74 417.03 354.52
|
Net assets acquired 11,852,95 559.68 3,498.96
1
fevanue for the period ended 1,02.325.95 3,823.05) 32,870,683 2,711,584
Expenses far the period anded 1,01,421.09 3,940.37 | 3351133 2472.64
Profit ¢ [Loss) before tax for the penod ended e03.87 11732 |! 353.30 239.20
Proiit 055 | after tax for the period snded 564.53 57.92)] -12.70 139.77
Goodwil arising on acguisitien Rs. in lac
P Innovsource \ Affluent Global
Particular I""nm"“lj:::d'“s RIS Facilities Private uig::::'j;:;?‘ | Services Private
i Limited Limited
|Tatal purchase consideration paid: 12,549 94 933,08 5,254.57 6,456 91
C1 Put Option Liabifity 1.603.54 2.586.99
MNat assets acquired 4,314,57 423,76 3,496 94 1,542 64
alie Attmbutable To Clisst Ralationsiip 7.716.67 478,47 3,250.00 7.304.00
it Relationsing i) 98.76 46,40 2,136.52
Chent Relationship (Net of taxes) ?.776:67 g 4.393.60 51708
Difference considered as goodwill 458.70 130.53 1,055.77 2,334.49
Soodwill on consolidation Rs. in lac
As at March 31, | As at March 31,
Particulars 2020 [ 2019
Cpening Balance 3,969.25 | -
Agd: Or acquisition of subsidianes guring the vear - | 3,969.25
Tatal o o o 3,969.25 | 3,969.25
ash outflow R, in lae
Particulars Amount |

Consideration paid in cash

[Less. cash and cash equivalent balances acguired

_Total "

BEITE
18,411.11 |

7
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35 Disclosure of Net Assets/(Liabilities) and share in profit/(Loss)
o  As on 31st March 2019

As on 31st March 2020 .
MNet Assets (Net of Share in Profit/(Loss) Share in OCL Net Assets Share in Profit/(Loss) Share in OCI
Elimination)
o,
Asa % of Net As a % of As a % of As @ % of Net As 2 % of il
Particulars consolidated | Assets/(Liabil| consolidate Net loss consolidat| Net loss | consolidated | Assets/(Liabili | consolidated Net loss etk Net loss
net assets ities) d net loss ed net loss net assets ties) net loss o5
Parent Company
First Meridian 48% 12,432.15 413% (5.379.02) 1% {4.59) 60, 16,817.48 (4,897.49) 0,00%
Subsidiaries - Indian
Innovsource Services Private Limited 6,522.78 2.438.22 -627.30 18% 5,166.88 775.78 203.58% (81.52)
tes Private Linited 312.63 40,72 -11.48 1%, 409.77 13.43 | -178.39 71.44
V5 Global Services Private Limited 4,551.03 955.16 -80.54 14%, 3,882.37 BY9.26 131.57%| (52.69)
Affluent Glabal Services Private Limited 2,235.06 642.83 -0.80 6% 1,749.23 219,14 -56,75%: 22.73
Total i 26,053.65 | (1,302.09) (724.71) 100% 28,025.71 100%| (3,799.88) 100%| (40.05)
f
[
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3o Employee Stock Option Schame (ESQOS)

3F

During the FY 2019-20, the Board Governance & Remuneration committee in its meeting held on 03 April, 2019 grantad 293572 stock options under the Scheme namea:
FirstMendian Business Services Private Limited - Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019 ((ESOF 2019) to the few eligible employees of the Group. The pptions allotted
under the scheme are convertible into equal number of equity shares of the face value of Rs, 10 each, The scheme shall be implementad through the ESOP Trust. The
ESOP Trust shall be authorized to acquire equity shares of the Group.

Each Option entitles the holder thereef to apply for and be allotted one equity share of the Group of Rs, 10 each upen payment of the exercise price during the exercise
period. The aption would vest in 3 annual installments after one year of the grant. The exercise period commences from the date of vesting of the aptions and expires at
the end of six years from the date of grant and would not exceed 3 years from the date of vesting in respect of Optiens granted under the Scheme.

The vesting period for conversion of Options is as follows:

On completicn of 12 menths from the date of grant of option 33%: vests
On completion of 24 menths from the date of grant of option 33% vests
COn completion of 36 months from the date of grant of option 34%: vests

The fair value of the share options is estimated at the grant date using Black and Schaoles Madel, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted.

There were no modifications to the awards during the year ended 31 March, 2020 and 1 April, 2018, As at the end of the financal year, details and movements of the
outstanding gotions ara as follows:

As at March 31, 2020
Weighted average exercise
price (%) |

Particulars
' No. of Options

Options granted under ESOS |
Cptions outstanding at the beginming of the year - -
Options granted during the year 2,93.572.00
Options outstanding at the end of the vear 2,93,572.00 =
Options exercisable at the end of the year - -
Ranage of exercise price of gutstanding options (#) ¥ 40-200

=

Remaining contractual life of outstanding options (years} 7

The fair value of option is estimated on the date of grant based on the following assumptions:

ESOS
Particulars On the date of
Grant
Tranche T
Dividend wield (%) e
Expected life .
Risk free interest rate (%) 6.98%
Volatility (%) 35.68%
Fair Value* 46.88

The expected life of the share options is based on histarical data and current expectations and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may occur. The
volatility is based an the historical share grice over a period similar to the expected life of the options.

The Group has considered the possible affacts that may result from the pandemic refating to COVID-19 an the carrying amounts of recsivables and other assats. In
assessing the recoverability of the assets, the Company has considered internal and external sources of information, available as at the date of approval of thase
financial statements, including subsequent recoveries, credit risk profiles, etc, Based on the above assessment, the Company is of the view that the carrying amounts of
the assets will ba realized, The impact of COVID-18 an the Company's financial statements may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements, and the Company will continue to closely manitor the develapments,
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